AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

RED HILL COMMUNITY UNIT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10

AND

THE RED HILL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 (One Year Extension)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
ARTICLE 1	RECOGNITION	
1.1	Recognition and Bargaining Unit	1
1.2	Exclusivity	1
1.3	Definitions	1
ARTICLE 2	NEGOTIATIONS	1
2.1	Mediation	1
ARTICLE 3	ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	2
3.1	Notice of Board Meetings	2
3.2	Board Minutes	
3.3	Announcements	2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3
3.4	Notification of New Employees	2
3.5	IEA Delegates	2
3.6	Distribution of Agreement	2
3.7	Exclusivity of Rights	3
3.8	Payroll Deduction/Dues	3
3.9	Use of School Mailboxes	3
3.10	Use of District Facilities and Equipment	3
3.11	Association/Management Committee	3
3.12	Fair Share	4
ARTICLE 4A	EMPLOYEE RIGHTS (All Members of Bargaining Unit)	6
4A.1	Prohibition of Discrimination Based no Association Activities	6
4A.2	Right of Representation	6
4A.3	Personnel File	6
4A.4	Payroll Procedure and Pay Day Schedule	6
4A.5	Mileage and Reimbursement	7
4A.6	Student Information	7
4A.7	Substitutes	7
ARTICLE 4B	EMPLOYEE RIGHTS (Teachers Only)	8
4B.1	Graduate Hours	8
4B.2	Teacher Work Day Definition	8
4B.3	Duty-Free Lunch	9
4B.4	Lesson Plans	9
4B.5	School Calendar	9
4B.6	Censorship	9

		PAGE
4B.7	Changes in Teaching Assignments	9
4B.8	Dropping of Programs	10
4B.9	Continuous Service of Teachers	10
4B.10	Vacancies	11
4B.11	Student Punishment	11
4B.12	Class Size	12
ARTICLE 4C	CAFETERIA AND CUSTODIAL WORKERS	
	(Cooks and Custodians Only)	12
4C.1	Call-in Pay	12
4C.2	Work Week and Overtime	12
4C.3	Lunch Periods	13
4C.4	Changes in ESP Assignment	13
4C.5	Assignment of Hours	13
4C.6	Cook Licensure	13
4C.7.1	Custodian Work Day	13
4C.7.2	Paid Breaks	13
4C.7.3	Cook Work Days	13
4C.8	Saturday Events	13
4C.9	Holidays	14
4C.10	Holiday Work	14
4C.11	Seniority for ESP	14
4C.12	Vacancy for ESP	14
4C.13	Reduction in Force	14
4C.14	Subcontracting	15
ARTICLE 5	SUSPENSION WITHOUT PAY	15
5.1	Procedures	15
5.2	Recommendation and Response	16
5.3	Review	16
5.4	Existing Causes of Action	16
5.5	Probationary Period	16
5.6	Just Cause	16
ARTICLE 6	LEAVES	17
6.1	Personal Leave	17
6.2	Leaves of Absence	18
6.3	Professional Leave	19
6.4	Sick Leave	20
6.5	Release Time	20
6.6	Jury Duty and Subpoenas	20
6.7	Vacations	21

		PAGE
ARTICLE 7	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	21
7.1	Definition	21
7.2	Procedures	22
7.3	Bypass	22
7.4	Class Grievances	22
7.5	No Reprisals Clause	23
7.6	Filing of Materials	23
7.7	Grievance Withdrawal	23
7.8	No Written Response	23
7.9	Expedited Arbitration	23
7.10	Costs	23
7.11	Court Reporter and Transcripts	23
7.12	Postponement	23
ARTICLE 8A	EVALUATION (Teachers Only)	24
8A.1	Compliance	24
8A.2	Procedures	24
8A.3	Evaluator's Qualifications	24
8A.4	Length and Reporting of Formal Evaluations	24
8A.5	Definitions	25
8A.6	Grievances	26
ARTICLE 8B	EVALUATION (Cooks and Custodians Only)	26
ARTICLE 9A	RETIREMENT (Teachers Only)	27
9A.1	Accumulated Sick Leave	27
9A.2	Incentives	27
9A.3	Retirement Incentive Plan – Notice of Intent to Retire and Additional Compensation	27
ARTICLE 9B	RETIREMENT (Educational Support Personnel Only)	31
ARTICLE 10	COMPENSATION	31
10.1	Years of Experience in District (Vertical Movement	
	On Schedule	31
10.2	Horizontal Movement on Salary Schedule	31
10.3	Mileage	32
10.4	Insurance	32
10.5	Retirement	33
10.6	Payroll Deductions	34
10.7	Salary Requirements	34

		PAGE
10.8	Overload Compensation	34
10.9	Recognition of Outside Employment	34
10.9.1	Employment of Retired Teachers	35
10.9.2	Internal Substitutions	35
ARTICLE 11	EFFECT OF AGREEMENT	35
11.1	Complete Understanding	35
11.2	No Strike	36
11.3	Duration	36
11.4	Work Rules	36
11.5	Reasonable Accommodations Required by Law	36
11.6	Savings Clause	36
APPENDIX A	2017-2018 SALARY SCHEDULE (Teachers)	37
	2018-2019 SALARY SCHEDULE (Teachers)	38
	2019-2020 SALARY SCHEDULE (Teachers)	39
	2017-2018 SALARY SCHEDULE (Custodians And Cooks)	40
	2018-2019 SALARY SCHEDULE (Custodians And Cooks)	40
	2019-2020 SALARY SCHEDULE (Custodians And Cooks)	41
APPENDIX B	EXTRA DUTY SCHEDULE	42
ALL ENDIA D	EATRA DOTT SCHEDULE	42
	I OF UNDERSTANDING #1	45
MEMORANDUM	I OF UNDERSTANDING #2	46

ARTICLE 1

RECOGNITION

1.1 Recognition and Bargaining Unit

The Board of Education of Red Hill Community Unit School District No. 10, hereinafter the "Board" recognizes the Red Hill Education Association, IEA/NEA, hereinafter the "Association" as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for all regularly employed non-temporary certified teaching personnel, including guidance counselors, librarians, and certified nurse, and all regularly employed non-temporary custodial and cafeteria employees, but except the Superintendent, Principals, Assistant Principals and other supervisory and managerial personnel as defined in Illinois Educational Labor Relations Act.

1.2 Exclusivity

The Board agrees not to negotiate on hours, wages and other conditions of employment with any other organization or individual or group of individuals.

1.3. Definitions

In this Agreement the word "teacher" means a member of the bargaining unit whose position requires a professional educator's license, formerly called a teacher "certificate." The words "educational support personnel" or "ESP" mean a member of the bargaining unit whose position does not require a professional educator's license, and who is employed as a custodial or cafeteria employee. A "teacher" does not include classroom aides, library aides, or other individuals performing teacher aide functions.

ARTICLE 2

NEGOTIATIONS

2.1 Mediation

Should the parties fail to reach agreement on a successor agreement the parties will jointly request mediation assistance from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service.

ARTICLE 3

ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

3.1 Notice of Board Meetings

The Association President shall be given notice of regular and special board meetings in the same form and fashion as Board Members. An electronic copy of the Board Packet less any confidential material will be provided.

3.2 Board Minutes

A copy of Board minutes shall be provided the Association President following adoption thereof.

3.3 Announcements

The time and place of Association meetings may be announced on the school intercom and/or included in the daily bulletin, provided there is one.

3.4 Notification of New Employees/Association Leadership

Names and addresses of new bargaining unit members will be provided to the Association within fourteen (14) working days of hiring, unless the employee objects. The Association will provide the Board with the names of Association officer/s within fourteen (14) days of newly elected officers.

3.5 IEA Delegates

- A. Should an Association member be elected alternate delegate or delegate to IEA Representative Assembly, the member shall be released up to two (2) working days without loss of pay or benefit to attend. The Association shall reimburse the District for the cost of the substitute if one is used.
- B. Association members shall be allowed to attend a total of two (2) conferences and workshops per year without loss of pay or benefits with the Association paying for substitute costs.

3.6 Distribution of Agreement

Within thirty (30) working days of ratification, the Board shall prepare this Agreement for distribution and distribute it to all Association members' District email accounts. Following adoption and ratification of the Agreement in which custodial and cafeteria workers are added to the bargaining unit, original counter parts will be prepared by the Board for signature and dated by the parties. The Board will make ten (10) photocopies of

the original Agreement for the Association. The District will place the Agreement in PDF format on the District's website.

3.7 Exclusivity of Rights

All rights granted the Association shall be exclusive and not extend to other competing organizations, except the Board shall have the right to comply with all laws and regulations.

3.8 Payroll Deductions/Dues

Upon submission of a proper authorization form provided by the Association, payroll deduction will be made for Association dues, contributions, and other payments for bargaining unit members. Said authorization shall remain in effect from year to year unless canceled by written notice to the District and the Association prior to September 1st. The Association will notify the District each year of the dues amount for each employee so authorizing by September 1st. Dues so deducted shall be remitted within ten (10) working days from each pay period. The District shall not be liable for dues in arrears if it has complied with the procedure written above including insufficient earnings due to, but not limited to:

- A. Termination of employment
- B. Leaves of absence without pay
- C. Insufficient earnings to cover dues

Dues shall be deducted in substantially equal installments for the months of September through June.

3.9 Use of School Mailboxes

The Association shall be allowed the use of school mailboxes. A bulletin board shall be provided in each building for the posting of Association announcements.

3.10 Use of District Facilities and Equipment

The Association may use District buildings for Local Association business upon approval of the administration provided that such use shall not be withheld unless it would conflict with the school program or previously scheduled use by others. The Association may use District equipment and shall reimburse the District for expendables.

3.11 Association/Management Committee

A committee consisting of the Superintendent, members of the Board of Education and members of the Association shall be established as needed upon written notification of either side to the other. Committee members representing the Association and Board, respectively, shall not exceed three (3) in number except by mutual agreement of the Association and the Board representatives at a particular meeting.

The committee shall meet at a mutually agreeable time at least once each semester for the purpose of discussing matters of concern to either the Association or the Board pertaining to the operation of the schools. Matters shall not necessarily be limited to discussions of mandatory topics of Collective Bargaining. Nothing precludes the holding of additional meetings of the committee by mutual agreement of the parties.

In order to allow for an informed discussion of issues, an agenda will be established ten (10) working days prior to the meeting and no topic will be added to the agenda unless agreed to by both parties. In order to place an item on the agenda, each side shall advise the other in writing at least ten (10) working days prior to the scheduled meeting. The Association shall advise the Superintendent of the topics it wishes to discuss, and the Superintendent shall advise the President of the Association of topics which the Board desires to discuss.

Minutes of these meetings shall be kept and distributed to all Board Members and the Association President. The minutes will be jointly written by representatives of both parties. There will be a secretary to take minutes in addition to the team members. In order to promote the free exchange of ideas, meetings shall not be considered Collective Bargaining; however, nothing shall preclude the parties from modifying the Collective Bargaining Agreement through the committee process if the Board and Association agree. The parties understand that meetings may be subject to the Open Meetings Act.

3.12 Fair Share

- A. Commencing with the 2012-2013 school year, each bargaining unit member, as a condition of his/her employment, on or before thirty (30) days from the date of commencement of duties or the effective date of this Agreement, whichever is later, shall join the Association or pay a fair share fee to the Association equivalent to the amount certified annually by the Association to the Board, and not exceeding the amount of dues uniformly required of members of the Association, including local, state and national dues. The obligation to pay a fair share fee shall not apply to any bargaining unit member employed by the District on September 16, 2012, who is not a voluntary member of the Association as of that date.
- B. In the event that the Bargaining Unit Member does not pay his/her fair share fee directly to the Association by a certain date as established by the Association annually, which shall be no later than ten (10) days before the first pay date in September, the Board shall deduct the fair share fee from the wages of the non-member. Fair-Share will be deducted on the same schedule as voluntary dues deduction for bargaining unit members.

Such fee shall be paid to the Association by the Board no later than ten (10) days following deduction.

In the event of any legal action against the Board brought in a court or administrative agency because of its compliance with this Article, the Association agrees to defend such action, at its own expense and through its own counsel, provided:

- 1. The Board gives immediate notice of such action in writing to the Association, and permits the Association intervention as a party if it so desires; and
- 2. The Board gives full and complete cooperation to the Association and its counsel in securing and giving evidence, obtaining witnesses and making relevant information available at both trial and all appellate levels.
- C. The Association agrees that in any action so defended, it will indemnify and hold harmless the Board from any liability for damages and costs imposed by a final judgment of a court or administrative agency as a direct consequence of the Board's non-negligent compliance with this Article

It is expressly understood that this save harmless provision will not apply to any claim, demand, suit or other form of liability which may arise as a result of any type of willful misconduct by the Board or the Board's imperfect execution of the obligations imposed upon it by this Article.

The obligation to pay a fair share fee will not apply to any employee who, on the basis of a bona fide religious tenet or teaching of a church or religious body of which such Employee is a member or a belief sincerely held with the strength of traditional religious views, objects to the payment of a fair share fee to the Association.

Upon proper substantiation and collection of the entire fee, the Association will make payment on behalf of the employee to a mutually agreed upon non-religious charitable organization as per Association policy and the Rules and Regulations of the Illinois Educational Labor Relations Board.

D. The obligation of the District to deduct fair share payments is contingent upon the Association's compliance with the Rules and Regulations of the Illinois Educational Labor Relations Board regarding fair share.

ARTICLE 4A

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS (This Article Applies to All Members of the Bargaining Unit)

4A.1 Prohibition of Discrimination Based on Association Activities

The Board agrees it will not discriminate on the basis of participation in negotiations, grievance processing, membership or non-membership in the Association. The Association shall not proceed to arbitration on a discrimination charge upon which it has filed an unfair labor practice.

4A.2 Right of Representation

When an employee is required to appear before the Board or the Administration concerning any matter which will affect the employee's continued employment, or result in loss of salary, the employee shall be entitled to representative(s) of the Association present. The Administration will take measures to ensure that necessary meetings requiring the presence of representatives of the Association will be scheduled in a manner to avoid loss of instructional time unless such meeting is an emergency. This representative will be chosen by the Association. This shall not apply to regular evaluation conferences. Further, whenever an employee is required to appear before the Board for the above specified matters, the employee shall be advised in writing at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the reasons for the requirement.

4A.3 Personnel File

Each employee shall have the right, upon request, twenty-four (24) hours in advance, to review the contents of said employee's personnel file and to place therein written reactions to any of its contents. The review shall take place at a time agreeable to the Superintendent, but within two (2) business days to the Central Office of the request. A representative of the Association may, at the request of the employee, accompany the employee for this review. The Superintendent or his/her designee shall also be present for the review. One copy of any non-confidential information in the file per year shall be given to the employee on request at no charge.

4A.4 Payroll Procedure and Pay Day Schedule

Employees may elect to receive payment of wages over either a ten (10) or twelve (12) month period. When such election is made it may not be changed without Board approval.

Any reimbursements for travel expenses, etc., as well as any extra money reimbursed to a certified employee will be disbursed on the 2nd pay of each month.

Salary deduction for certified personnel for absence not covered by paid leave shall be computed by dividing the annual salary by one hundred eighty (180) days and multiplying by the number of absences. This does not authorize otherwise unauthorized absences.

4A.5 Mileage and Reimbursement

- A. All job-related mileage shall be either pre-approved, or the direct result of an assignment made by the supervising administrator.
- B. Employees will be reimbursed at the then-current IRS allowed rate for all authorized job-related travel for which they have to use their personal vehicles. Any reimbursement for authorized travel expenses of a member of the bargaining unit will be disbursed on the second (2nd) pay of each month.
- C. Employees shall keep a mileage log on the appropriate form provided on the school website. Should the school website be unavailable, forms will be available in each school office for employee use. This form shall be returned to the Unit Office once a month on a date specified by the Superintendent.
- D. Teachers who teach in buildings outside the District will be paid the shorter of the following round trips:
 - 1. From the regular District building to the out-of-District assignment and back.
 - 2. From home to the out-of-District assignment and back.

4A.6 Student Information

Classroom teachers shall be informed of medical problems of students assigned to them, of which the Administration is aware, which are reasonably anticipated to adversely affect classroom performance. Each building office shall maintain a District-wide list of student medical problems which shall be made available to teachers in case of emergency. Because of privacy rights of students, teachers shall be subject to discipline for revealing student medical information except to other employees with an immediate educational or administrative need to know such information in order to perform their duties. Cooks and custodians will be informed of student health information to the extent necessary for them to perform their duties.

4A.7 Substitutes

The Administration will take reasonable steps to secure substitutes.

ARTICLE 4B

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS (This Article Applies only to Teachers)

4B.1 Graduate Hours

Graduate hours earned by an employee that advance the employee on the salary schedule will be recognized as soon as earned, provided such credits are filed with the Superintendent by September 1st of that year. Only graduate hours earned after the attainment of a graduate degree in an education-related field will count towards further advancement on the salary schedule.

4B.2 Teacher Work Day Definition

The work day shall be from 8:00 a.m. through 3:45 p.m. with the following exceptions:

- A. Teachers may leave the building with permission of the building administrator.
- B. Teachers who have morning supervision may leave at an equal time early (e.g., teachers supervising from 7:50 a.m. may leave at 3:35 p.m.).
- C. On Fridays and before long weekend holidays and vacations, teachers may leave after the last student bus leaves, except that teachers may not leave early on the first or last day of school when the teachers have professional duties remaining.
- D. Teachers shall devote such additional time as may be necessary for scheduled parent/teacher conferences, open house, supervisory duties (e.g., bus and hall) volunteer club activities, compensated extra duties, teacher assigned student discipline or assistance, and emergencies, reasonable faculty meetings, institutes, in-service meetings and other special events and occasions established in past practice.
- E. **Preparation Periods.** The Board of Education will maintain planning time for teachers at a level commensurate with enrollment and scheduling. Every attempt will be made to maximize planning time in blocks. Each full-time 5th -12th grade teacher shall receive one (1) class period per day of prep time. Elementary teachers shall receive a minimum of one hundred fifty (150) minutes per week for prep time.
- F. **Traveling Teachers.** Any traveling employee will be provided with adequate time for travel time, lunch, and classroom preparation in consultation with the administrator(s) and employee involved.

4B.3 Duty-Free Lunch

Every certified employee will receive a duty-free lunch period of no less than thirty-five (35) minutes and in accordance with 105 ILCS 5/24-9.

4B.4 Lesson Plans

General lesson plans will be prepared for the ensuing week and be available to the Building Principal by the first working day of the current week per Faculty Handbook. This shall include delivery to the Building Principal, if requested. It is understood that lesson plans are educationally valuable; and that from time to time, if requested, an employee will report to the administration on his/her plans for student lessons. It is also understood that circumstances may cause teachers to alter or adjust these plans.

4B.5 School Calendar

The Board shall establish a school calendar which does not exceed one hundred eighty-five (185) days, including five (5) emergency days. If the five (5) emergency work days are not used for emergency purposes they shall not become teacher work days. The Superintendent\Faculty Committee will be consulted and may recommend a school calendar for the Board of Education's approval.

4B.6 Censorship

If an individual or a group attempts to censor any textbooks, library materials, or other instructional materials, the following procedure will be implemented.

All complaints regarding the use of any instructional or educational materials shall be submitted to the administration.

A committee of employees competent in the pertinent subject area will be appointed by the Superintendent. The Association may name one (1) member to any such committee. The committee shall review the complaint and submit a written recommendation to the Superintendent.

The Superintendent shall review the committee's recommendation and shall forward it and the Superintendent's own recommendation to the Board. Disposition of the disputed material will be at the discretion of the Superintendent pending action of the Board.

4B.7 Changes in Teaching Assignments

Notice of changes in teaching assignments shall be provided to all affected teachers by July 15th. Other changes in assignments will be made only in emergency, such as, unexpected vacancies, unfilled vacancies, and changes in enrollment. Teachers dissatisfied with the change after July 15th, may resign without penalty.

4B.8 Dropping of Programs

Association input shall be sought before programs are dropped.

4B.9 Continuous Service of Teachers

- A. Continuous service shall be measured from the first day of the most recent continuous service to the District as a certificated employee. Part-time service to the District shall be prorated based on the normal school year and/or day.
- B. Should the District reduce the size of the faculty, the District shall not be required to align or change positions so as to avoid reduction in force. Teachers shall be reduced in force in accordance with groupings, with Grouping One teachers reduced first, and Grouping Four teachers dismissed last, among teachers qualified, including District qualifications established in job descriptions by May 10 of the year preceding the reduction in force. The Association will be afforded copies of changed job descriptions and opportunity to comment and provide input before the changes become effective, and may negotiate the impact of job description changes.
- C. Should teachers have equal seniority as defined above, ties will be broken in this order:
 - 1. An average numerical calculation of each individual rating on the most recent summative evaluation with Excellent=4, Proficient=3, Needs Improvement=2, and Unsatisfactory=1.
 - 2. Graduate hours reflected as a lane on the salary schedule.
 - 3. Drawing of Lots.
- D. 24-12 Joint Committee. The joint committee established by School Code Section 24-12 shall consist of three (3) employees selected by the Association and three (3) members selected by the Board. They shall meet at least once during the school term, no later than December 1st, to determine and review modifications to criteria for determining the Sequence of Honorable Dismissal list that the Joint Committee is authorized under School Code Section 24-12. Agreement of the Joint Committee (as determined by majority vote) must be reached on or before February 1st of a year of the agreements to be effective for the Sequence of Honorable Dismissal List that year.
- E. Sequence of Honorable Dismissal List. A copy of the Sequence of Honorable Dismissal List shall be provided to the Association President by seventy-five (75) days prior the end of the school term. The Association President shall also be provided a copy of the Sequence of Honorable Dismissal List with names attached at the same time. Employees shall have fifteen (15) school days from the distribution of the list to notify the Superintendent of errors within the list. The Association President and Superintendent shall work to resolve errors.

F. Reduction in Force. In the event of reduction of certified employees, or recall following reduction in force of certified employees the Board shall follow procedures outlined in section 24-12 of Illinois School Code. Failure to respond within five (5) office business days of receipt of a notice of recall sent certified mail to last address supplied by the teacher will void recall rights.

4B.10 Vacancies

Notice of all confirmed vacancies for certified positions shall be posted in each attendance center and emailed to all certified staff.

- A. No position will be filled on a permanent basis until the vacancy has been posted for Five (5) calendar days. No vacant position shall be filled during the summer months for at least Five (5) calendar days following the mailing of such notice to the Association President, except that vacancies occurring within Five (5) calendar days of the commencement of school may be filled without regard to the restrictions contained in this section 4B.10.A.
- B. Any person may apply for a position for which he/she is qualified, and shall be given a conference with the administration upon the teacher's written request to discuss the teacher's interest and qualifications. The written request must be a separate document from the application packet and must be addressed to the Superintendent.
- C. Vacancies will be filled in accordance with 105 ILCS 5/24-1.5.
- D. Should an involuntary transfer be necessary, the Board shall first request volunteers. The Board shall make the final decision concerning vacancies and transfers.

4B.11 Student Punishment

The administration and Board will support teachers in appropriate efforts to insure acceptable student behavior. The Building Principal will advise teachers as to what punishment is acceptable.

Pursuant to the requirements of School Code Section 10-20.14, the Board has established and maintains a parent-teacher advisory committee to develop with the School Board policy guidelines on pupil discipline, school searches, a reciprocal reporting system with local police agencies, safety procedures and aggressive student behavior (bullying), and other matters. The Board shall appoint administrators or Board Members to serve on the parent-teacher advisory committee. The Association shall appoint teachers to the parent-teacher advisory committee in numbers equal to the number of administrators/Board Members. The Board shall also appoint parents to the parent-teacher advisory committee.

4B.12 Class Size

Any teacher who feels his/her class size is too large or in violation of District Class Size Policy (which is not made a part of this Agreement) shall have the right to meet with the Principal and/or Superintendent to discuss the need for an aide or to split classes. The Superintendent shall promptly either grant or deny the request. Should the request be denied, the teacher will be placed on the agenda of the next regular School Board meeting to explain the needed change. The decision of the Board of Education shall be final. Upon request of the teacher, a local Association representative may participate in these meetings.

ARTICLE 4C

CAFETERIA AND CUSTODIAL WORKERS (This Article Applies only to Cooks and Custodians)

4C.1 Call-in Pay

Custodians and cooks will be guaranteed one (1) hour's minimum pay if called in to work outside the employee's schedule for that week.

4C.2 Work Week and Overtime

If an employee actually works more than forty (40) hours per week, the employee will be permitted one and one-half (1 1/2) hour of compensatory time for each hour beyond forty (40) in that work week or paid one and one-half (1 1/2) times the employee's regular rate, at the discretion of the employee. Compensatory time must be scheduled and approved by the Building Principal, or in the absence of a principal, by the Central Office administration.

EXAMPLES:

Custodian AB is ill on Monday and does not work, but receives one (1) day sick leave pay. Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday, AB works eight (8) hours. Friday, AB works nine (9) hours. AB is entitled to zero (0) overtime because he only worked thirty-three (33) hours in the week.

Custodian CD works ten (10) hours per day Monday through Thursday. The administration gives CD Friday off. CD is entitled to no overtime because he worked forty (40) hours in the week.

4C.3 Lunch Periods

Lunch periods will be scheduled by the administration for cooks and custodians who work six (6) or more hours per day. The scheduled day will include a thirty (30) minute paid lunch period during which the employee may be called upon to perform duties.

4C.4 Changes in ESP Assignment

Cooks and custodians will be informed of tentative assignments for the following school year by August 1.

4C.5 Assignment of Hours

Custodians and Cooks will be informed of their regular hours of work on or before August 1st. Regular hours of work may be adjusted due to special schedule days or events, absences, and other circumstances beyond the control of the District. Unless due to other circumstances beyond the control of the District, the Board will provide at least two (2) weeks' notice to affected employees.

4C.6 Cook Licensure

The Board will pay the cost of the cook's required sanitation class and license.

4C.7.1 Custodian Work Day

Full-time custodians may be assigned to work twelve (12), eleven (11), or ten (10) months. Full-time custodians work eight (8) hours per day. During the student summer vacation, custodian hours may be changed to ten (10) hours per day, four (4) days per week, at the discretion of the Board.

4C.7.2 Paid Breaks

Custodians and cooks will be entitled to one (1) fifteen (15) minute break for each four (4) hours of work.

4C.7.3 Cook Work Days

- A. Head cooks work seven (7) hours per day for one hundred seventy-six (176) days per school year.
- B. Cooks' hours vary by building. Cooks work one hundred seventy-six days per year and hours vary from four (4) to seven (7) hours per work day.

4C.8 Saturday Events

Custodians occasionally work Saturday events, which, absent emergency or unanticipated situation, will be scheduled as a part of the custodian's regular forty (40) hour week. Unless due to emergency or other circumstances beyond the control of the District, the Board will provide at least two (2) weeks' notice to affected employees.

4C.9 Holidays

Paid holidays are those days set aside on the calendar when the employees are not required to work but for which they receive work credit and are paid their regular rate of pay.

Twelve (12) month employees shall be paid for, and the District shall observe, the following fourteen (14) holidays: Independence Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Thanksgiving Friday, Christmas Eve Day, Christmas Day, New Year's Eve Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, President's Day or Abraham Lincoln's Birthday, Good Friday, and Memorial Day. If a waiver is granted which removes a holiday, a paid day will be added to replace the waived holiday. The intent of this language is to assure fourteen (14) paid holidays per year. When Christmas Day or New Year's Day falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the day shall be observed on the preceding Friday or following Monday.

Eleven (11) month employees hired on or before July 1, 2014, shall receive five (5) of the paid holidays listed above for twelve (12) month employees, and based around the employee's work schedule.

4C.10 Holiday Work

Cooks or Custodians may be required to work on holidays because of an emergency or for the continued operation and maintenance of the school facilities or property. Any Cook or Custodian required to so work will be paid holiday pay plus time and a half for such work.

4C.11 Seniority for ESP

A list of cooks and custodians shall be arranged in order of their seniority on the Association bulletin board. Seniority shall be determined as of the first day of work of an employee as regularly employed. If the first day of work is the same, seniority shall be determined by the drawing of lots.

4C.12 Vacancy for ESP

Whether or not a vacancy exists shall be determined by the Board. Vacancies shall be filled as the Board determines is in the best interest of the District, in its sole discretion. There shall be no preference for currently employed employees when filling vacancies.

4C.13 Reduction in Force

All noncertified reductions in force shall be performed in accordance with 105 ILCS 5/10-23.5. The Board shall inform the Association of any impending reductions in force not less than 20 days prior to taking action thereon. If the Board has any vacancies for the following school term or within one (1) calendar year of the beginning of the school term, the positions thereby becoming available within a specific category of position shall be tendered to the employee so removed or dismissed from the category of position or any category of position, in reverse order of seniority dismissal, so far as they are qualified to hold such positions on the date of recall. To be qualified, an employee on recall status must have worked in the District in that category of position.

4C.14 Subcontracting

The Board retains the right to, and there is no limit imposed by this Agreement on subcontracting of work or management of food service or custodial service in the District, except that if the Board elects to subcontract work, no educational support personnel of the bargaining unit employed on or before July 1, 2015 shall be replaced by subcontracting, and shall remain employed by the Board, except for termination of employment as is permitted by this Agreement or by law.

In the event the Board considers subcontracting bargaining unit work described in Section 10-22.34c of the Illinois School Code, the Board will adhere to the requirements outlined therein.

ARTICLE 5

SUSPENSION WITHOUT PAY

5.1 Procedures

The Board reserves the right to impose suspensions with or without pay. Suspension without pay may be imposed for violations of Board policy or work rules. Suspension without pay shall be preceded by:

- A. Oral warning (first offense), and
- B. Written warning (second offense), except in cases involving:
 - 1. Dishonesty in respect to professional teaching obligations (i.e., any District duties or responsibilities);
 - 2. Violations of District policy concerning corporal punishment:
 - 3. Sexual harassment or misconduct relating to the District;
 - 4. Behavior which causes or poses a danger of personal injury or damage to property; and
 - 5. Willful failure to perform assigned duties.
- C. In cases where the Board determines just cause exists, Step A and/or B may be skipped.

5.2 Recommendation and Response

The Superintendent shall recommend any suspensions to the Board after affording the employee the opportunity to respond orally or in writing to written charges.

5.3 Review

Upon request, the employee shall be entitled to review before the Board of any recommended suspension. This review shall be within twenty (20) school days. The employee may be represented at the review at his/her own expense. The Board may employ a hearing officer. The review will be in closed session to the extent allowed by law.

At the review, the Superintendent shall be the moving party. The employee may cross examine. The employee may present such evidence as necessary. The Board will review the evidence presented without further advice or comment from the Administration.

An employee shall not be suspended without pay for reasons that are untrue, nor in a manner that is arbitrary or capricious. This provision has no effect upon tenured teacher dismissal, non-renewal of probationary employees, or letter of remediable notice.

5.4 Existing Causes of Action

The grievance procedure shall not apply to this provision; but this provision has no effect upon, and does not waive any causes of action which may exist.

5.5 Probationary Period

During the first ninety (90) working days of employment, noncertified employees may be dismissed for any reason, or without any reason at all.

5.6 Just Cause

No noncertified employee shall be given a written reprimand, suspended or terminated without just cause, except under the provisions of Section 5.5 above, or as otherwise provided for under law.

ARTICLE 6

LEAVES

6.1 Personal Leave

Upon request to the Administration full-time employees will be allowed three (3) personal leave days per school year; half-time employees will be allowed one (1) personal leave day per school year, subject to the following conditions:

- A At least two (2) calendar days' prior written notice must be given to the administration.
- B. Employees shall have the right to maintain the confidentiality of the reason(s) for taking such leave. However, by applying for such leave, the employee shall be verifying that the leave is necessary for essential personal business which cannot be completed after the regular workday or on weekends. Personal leave shall not be available for employees to conduct a business for profit or to act as an independent contractor for wages or fees. However, persons may act as an election judge or work at a state tournament without pay from the District. Such days without pay shall not be personal leave days.
- C. Any unused personal leave will be added to the employee's accumulated sick leave on July 1st of each year.
- D. No personal leave may be taken immediately before or immediately after a holiday or any vacation period, except with the prior approval of the Administration.
- E. Personal leave days cannot be taken during the first two (2) weeks and the last two (2) weeks of the school year, except with the prior advance approval of the administration. Only one-time extraordinary events will be considered for Personal Leave during the first two (2) weeks and last two (2) weeks of the school year.
- F. All personal leave days granted must be taken in increments of at least one-half (1/2) day at a time.
- G. All personal leave days are subject to the availability of a substitute. The administration shall be vested with the responsibility of locating substitutes. The administration shall make reasonable effort to obtain substitutes, which shall include seeking volunteers for internal substitution.
- H. No more than four (4) teachers, two (2) cooks and one (1) custodian District-wide may be granted personal leave on the same day. The administration may waive this restriction at its discretion.
- I. In case of an emergency, the conditions in A., D., E. and H. above may be waived at the discretion of the administration and/or Board.
- J. Under the exceptions defined in D., E. and I. above, the administration shall be allowed to request reasons for the leave before determining if it will be granted.
- K. The restrictions of this provision may be waived by the Superintendent.

L. The use of personal leave days to attend funerals shall be granted without restrictions A, D, E, G and H.

6.2 Leaves of Absence

Leaves of absence may be granted without pay to tenured teachers who desire to return to employment in a similar capacity at a time, as defined below, consistent with the needs of the District.

Leaves of absence without pay for not more than one (1) year may be granted to tenured teachers according to the following conditions:

- A. Written requests for leave of absence without pay shall be made at least three (3) months before the leave is desired, subject to final approval of the Board. The Board has the right to waive the three (3) month requirement if it can be shown an emergency condition exists.
- B. Dates of departure, return and notification of intent to return shall be determined by the teacher and Superintendent prior to initiating the request to the Board.
- C. Leaves may be granted for:
 - 1. Advanced study leading to a degree in an approved university;
 - 2. Educationally related travel if the applicant provides an itinerary and an explanation of how such travel shall improve the educational program;
 - 3. Military service;
 - 4. Birth or Adoption of a Child;
 - 5. Other reasons acceptable to the Board which will improve the educational program in the District.
- D. Teachers shall advance one (1) full year vertically on the salary schedule while on any approved leave of absence without pay, provided they have worked full time for seventy percent (70%) of the school year in which said leave is granted. Teachers shall advance one-half (1/2) year vertically on the salary schedule while on any approved leave of absence without pay, provided they have worked full time for forty percent (40%) of the school year in which said leave is granted.
- E. During an approved leave of absence, tenured teachers may continue insurance benefits, provided that the insurance carrier deems it acceptable and the teacher pays the cost of the premium on or before the 10th of each month.
- F. A teacher who is on approved leave of absence prior to February 15th of any school term shall notify the Superintendent by February 15th of his/her intention to return

to work at the start of the next school term. The date of such notice for a teacher granted such leave after February 15th of any school term shall be sixty (60) calendar days before the start of the next school term. The Board shall notify such teacher in writing by certified mail of the requirements of this paragraph prior to the required date of such notice by such teacher.

G. When approved in advance by the administration, custodians may take leave time up to one (1) hour during the work day for appointments, without loss of pay, so long as the work time is made up within the same pay period, or compensatory time is used as provided below. The request for the time off must be made at least one (1) entire working day in advance of the requested leave. If the custodian has earned but unused compensatory time, the compensatory time must be used first.

6.3 Professional Leave

Teachers will be allowed up to one (1) day per year to attend professional meetings in their teaching field. Attendance at such meetings must first be approved by the administration. The administration shall take into account the cost, requests made by other employees, distance from the District, the importance of the subject matter, and the applicability of the conference to the current educational needs of the District.

Reimbursable expenses are limited to the following:

- A. If privately owned automobiles are authorized for use, mileage of up to four hundred (400) miles round trip will be paid at the IRS current established rate. Mileage reimbursement will become effective upon the date this Agreement is signed or July 1, 2006, whichever comes later, and shall not be retroactive.
- B. Meal expenses at the lesser of actual cost or Thirty and 00/100 Dollars (\$30.00) per day for full days or overnight trip, or for partial days as follows:
 - 1. Breakfast at Five and 00/100 Dollars (\$5.00), provided travel commences prior to 6:30 a.m.
 - 2. Lunch at Ten and 00/100 Dollars (\$10.00).
 - 3. Dinner at Fifteen and 00/100 Dollars (\$15.00), provided travel extends past 6:00 p.m.
- C. Overnight lodging will be reimbursed at the following rates:
 - 1. One (1) day conference, no reimbursement.
 - 2. Two (2) day conference, one (1) night reimbursement.
 - 3. Three (3) day conference, two (2) nights' reimbursement.

The Superintendent may waive these restrictions at his/her discretion.

- D. If the Board pays for a conference day, the day is a professional day. If the Board pays for overnight lodging, the next day is chargeable as a professional day. However, Saturdays and holidays will not be counted as professional days.
- E. An employee will not be required to attend professional development activities encouraged by the administration on non-attendance days including emergency days.

6.4 Sick Leave

- A. The Board shall grant up to twelve (12) sick leave days per school term without loss of pay. Sick leave accumulation shall be up to the lesser of a maximum of four hundred fifty (450) days. Sick leave shall be interpreted to mean personal illness or serious illness or death in the immediate family or household. Immediate family, for purposes of this article, shall include: parents, spouse, brothers, sisters, children, grandparents, grandchildren, stepchildren, foster children, parents-in-law, step-parents, brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law, sons-in-law, daughters-in-law, grandparents-in-law and legal guardians. One (1) additional day will be granted for each extended month. This supplements the School Code. Sick Leave shall also include the death of aunts or uncles.
- B. Any employee who uses no sick leave days during an entire school quarter shall receive a \$100.00 stipend for each such quarter paid on the January or July payroll. Any employee who uses no sick leave days for the entire school term shall receive an additional \$100.00 stipend paid on the July payroll.

6.5 Release Time

Upon request and approval by the Superintendent or his designee, teachers shall be released one (1) time per year to serve as consultants to other schools. Additional days may be granted by special permission of the administration.

6.6 Jury Duty and Subpoenas

The Board shall pay the regular wages or salary to employees called for jury duty or issued subpoenas related to school issues but shall deduct any compensation received for such duty.

6.7 Vacations

Custodians who work twelve (12) months per year will be entitled to vacation on the following schedule after having completed the number of years of work indicated:

After one (1) year and through nine (9) years: Ten (10) days' vacation

After ten (10) years and through nineteen (19) years: Fifteen (15) days' vacation

After the completion of twenty (20) years:

Twenty (20) days' vacation

Examples: Custodian Fred is hired on October 23, 2015. He is not entitled to vacation until October 23, 2016, when he is credited with ten (10) days' vacation.

Fred completes nine (9) years' employment on October 22, 2024. He is credited on October 23, 2024 with ten (10) days' vacation.

Fred completed ten years' employment on October 22, 2025. He is credited with fifteen (15) days' vacation on October 23, 2025.

ARTICLE 7

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

7.1 Definition

A grievance shall be any claim by the Association, employee or group of employees that a specific provision of this Agreement has been misinterpreted or misapplied. All time limits in this Grievance Procedure shall consist of school days; except that when a grievance is submitted fewer than ten (10) days before the close of the current school term, all time limits will double, and the days shall be weekdays (i.e., Monday through Friday).

No grievance shall be processed pursuant to this Article unless the grievance commences at Step I of the Grievance Procedure within twenty (20) days of the event giving rise to the grievance or the employee's knowledge thereof, whichever is later.

7.2 Procedures

The parties acknowledge that the Board and the employee may resolve differences through informal communication. However, a grievance shall be processed as follows:

A. Step I

A grievant shall present the grievance in writing, setting forth specifically the acts grieved and the specific sections of this Agreement which are applicable, to the grievant's immediate supervisor, who will arrange for a meeting to take place within five (5) days after receipt of the grievance. If the grievant so desires, an Association representative may attend the meeting with the supervisor. Within five (5) days of the meeting, the supervisor shall provide the grievant and the Association with the supervisor's written response.

B. Step II

If the grievance is not resolved at Step I, then the Association may refer the grievance to the Superintendent or the Superintendent's official designee within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the Step I answer. The Superintendent shall arrange with the Association representative (if the grievance is represented by the Association) or the employee for a meeting to take place within five (5) days of the Superintendent's receipt of the appeal. Within five (5) days of the meeting, the Association and the employee will be provided with the Superintendent's written response.

C. Step III

If the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Step II, the Association may submit the grievance to final and binding arbitration. If the demand for arbitration is not filed with the Board within thirty (30) days of the date of the Step II answer, then the grievance shall be deemed withdrawn. If, within fifteen (15) days of the filing of the demand with the Board, the parties cannot agree upon an arbitrator, the demand shall be submitted to the American Arbitration Association, which shall act as the arbitrator of the proceedings.

7.3 Bypass

By mutual agreement, any step of the grievance procedure may be bypassed.

7.4 Class Grievances

Class grievances involving one (1) or more employees or one (1) or more supervisors, and grievances involving an administrator above the building level may be initially filed by the Association at Step II.

7.5 No Reprisals Clause

No reprisals shall be taken by the Board against an employee for an employee's participation in a grievance where the employee's presence was required by the arbitrator or the Board.

7.6 Filing of Materials

All records related to a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel files of the employees.

7.7 Grievance Withdrawal

A grievance may be withdrawn at any level without establishing precedent.

7.8 No Written Response

If no written decision has been rendered within the time limits indicated by a Step, then the grievance may proceed to the next Step, except that only the Association may take a grievance to binding arbitration.

7.9 Expedited Arbitration

If the parties mutually agree, in cases of individual grievances, the Expedited Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association will be used. Otherwise, the Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules shall apply.

7.10 Costs

The fees and the expenses of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the parties.

7.11 Court Reporter and Transcripts

If only one (1) party requests the presence of a reporter, that party shall bear the cost of the reporter. If only one (1) party requests a transcript, then only that party shall bear the cost of the transcript. However, if both parties desire a transcript, then the parties shall share equally the costs of the court reporter and transcript.

7.12 Postponement

If only one (1) party requests the postponement of an arbitration hearing, that party shall bear the cost of such postponement.

ARTICLE 8A

EVALUATION (This Article applies only to Teachers)

8A.1 Compliance

Any evaluation plan adopted by the District shall comply with the following.

8A.2 Procedures

- A. Prior to the commencement of evaluations in any given year, a member of the administration shall acquaint teachers with the formal, written evaluation procedures and instruments to be used. This may be done at a faculty meeting, and may also be done at pre-observation conferences.
- B. Non-tenured teachers will be evaluated annually, based upon at least two (2) formal observations and one informal observation. Tenured teachers shall be evaluated at least every other school term, and shall be based upon at least one (1) observation.
- C. The evaluator may conduct as many evaluations and/or observations in excess of the minimum as he/she deems necessary.
- D. Formal observations will be announced at least two (2) school days in advance. Informal observations may be announced or unannounced and may include incidents not intended to have been the object of observations. Such observations will be reduced to writing if they will be part of the evaluation.
- E. Information resulting from formal observations and informal observations will be utilized in completing the teacher's summative evaluation.

8A.3 Evaluator's Qualifications

Evaluators shall be legally qualified.

8A.4 Length and Reporting of Formal Observations

- A. The evaluator shall spend a minimum of one (1) class or lesson for teachers in self-contained classrooms for formal observations. Lessons may last less than one (1) class period. It is agreed that for some teachers, there are no regular "periods," such as elementary classes.
- B. The evaluator shall provide the completed teacher observation report form following a formal observation. A copy of the paper document may be left with the teacher at the end of class or within a ten (10) school day period following the observations, except in case of absence, emergency, illness, etc. If this procedure

is not followed, the Association will notify the Superintendent and Board President in writing.

- C. Pre- and post-conferences will be held for each formal observation.
- D. If the teacher disagrees with the written information he/she may submit a written rebuttal within ten (10) school days of the conference.
- E. The building administrator shall prepare a formal evaluation in triplicate. The completed evaluation forms shall be signed by both parties. The original copy shall be forwarded to the District office for inclusion in the teacher's personnel file; the second copy shall be retained in the building files; and the third copy shall be retained by the person being evaluated.

NOTE: The teacher's signature only signifies that he/she has read and discussed the evaluation results and has received a copy. Absence of signature will in no way release the teacher from the requirements, expectations, responsibilities or end results stated or indicated in the evaluation process.

8A.5 Definitions

- A. **Formal Observation.** Planned observation lasting for the entire class period or less, including completion of pre-observation data sheet
- B. **Informal Observation.** Announced/unannounced, walk-in observation; need not last for whole lesson period.
- C. **Summative Evaluation.** Final, end evaluation. Judgment is made by the qualified administrator on teacher's performance based on collection of data obtained in formal and informal observations, and other reliable information.
- D. Summative Evaluation Report (SER). The completed teacher evaluation instrument.
- E. **Data.** Collection of information obtained from observation of teaching techniques, teaching artifacts, planning information, and other reliable information regarding performance criteria.

F. Performance Ratings

Excellent - Documented observations reveal performance of a commendable quality. Multiple strengths in many skill areas in the Criteria/Standards. Any identified weaknesses may be improved without the formal intervention of an administrator.) Education impacts positively upon students and upon the school environment.

Proficient - Documented observations reveal generally accepted levels of performance. Job requirements are expedited adequately. (Identified weaknesses may be improved by the teacher or by implementation of a "JIG".)

Needs Improvement - Documented observations reveal less than generally accepted levels of performance in one or more areas of job requirements, or job requirements are not timely effectively, efficiently and correctly met.

Unsatisfactory - Documented observations reveal significant weaknesses in areas of the Criteria/Standards and require direct intervention by an administrator. Continued performance at a level below expectations would have a negative impact upon students and upon the school environment.

8A.6 Grievances

Grievances regarding evaluation shall be limited to allegations of failure of the District to comply with the procedural requirements set forth in this Article 8. The assignment of performance ratings or a decision of the Board of Education to not renew a contract of a non-tenured teacher is not grievable except for failure to comply with the procedural requirements of this Article 8.

ARTICLE 8B

EVALUATION

(This Article applies only to Cooks and Custodians)

The administration shall evaluate cooks and custodians at least annually. The evaluator shall consider the employee's work habits, compliance with direction and instruction and rules and regulations, punctuality, relations with supervisors, co-workers, and to the extent applicable to the position, student and parents, and the quality and quantity of the employee's performance of duties, whether by job description or direction. Evaluations shall be reduced to writing and reviewed with employees.

ARTICLE 9A

RETIREMENT (This Article applies only to Teachers)

9A.1 Accumulated Sick Leave

Upon retirement with at least fifteen (15) years of service to Red Hill CUSD #10 as a certified teacher, the Board will pay to the teacher Thirty and 00/100 (\$30.00) for each accumulated sick leave day over and above ninety (90) days. Only those days not used for service credit in the Teacher Retirement System may be used for this added retirement compensation. The teacher must have fifteen (15) years of service to this District; and

- A. Must be sixty (60) years of age with at least twenty (20) years of creditable service with the Illinois Teacher Retirement System; or
- B. Must be at least fifty-five (55) years of age with thirty-four (34) years of creditable service to the Illinois Teacher Retirement System and the Board of Education must not be required to pay a retirement percentage penalty to the Teacher Retirement System on behalf of the retiring employee.

The retiring teacher shall have the option to receive payment for any or the entire unused portion of sick leave in their final reportable TRS check. To avoid going over the state mandated salary cap, the payment for this unused portion of sick leave incentive will be paid after June 30 of the retirement year and before July 30 of the same year.

EXAMPLE: Teacher A has 200 days of accumulated sick leave when he/she retires to become an annuitant with the Teacher Retirement System and uses 170 of these days for an additional one year of service credit. Teacher A will be paid \$30.00 per day by the Board of Education for 30 days for a total of \$900.00. Teacher B has 89 days of sick leave at retirement. Teacher B receives no compensation from the Board of Education.

9A.2 Incentives

The Board may, at its discretion, offer or consider additional retirement or resignation incentives to individual employees. The Association will be informed of any individual negotiations.

9A.3 Retirement Incentive - Plan Notice of Intent to Retire and Additional Compensation

A. Qualifications and Eligibility

1. The teacher has at least twenty (20) years of teaching service as a certified staff member at Red Hill CUSD #10

- 2. The teacher must be at least fifty-five (55) years of age within six (6) months of the last date of service.
- 3. The teacher has attained whatever requirements may be necessary under the Illinois Pension Code to eliminate any Board-paid penalties or contribution requirements on behalf of the teacher.
- 4. The teacher is ineligible for this benefit if the teacher's retirement shall be under the Modified Early Retirement Option.

B. Notice of Intent to Retire and Resignation

The teacher may select up to a three (3) year retirement incentive period by delivering an irrevocable written notice of intent to retire and resign to the Superintendent by at least March 1 of the year prior to the incentive commencing. No matter what incentive period the teacher selects, the teacher will receive an increase in creditable earnings of the lesser of six percent or whatever the set TRS maximum rate per annum, as compared to the scheduled creditable earnings of that teacher for the previous year. The six percent (6%) increase will be based upon the total credible earnings reported to TRS the previous year for the same work. Payment of the additional retirement incentive will occur in a one (1) time payment made in the 2nd paycheck of June of any year receiving the incentive. Any teacher wishing to exercise this provision beginning in 2017-2018 will be given sixty (60) calendar days following ratification of this Agreement by the Board of Education to turn in their notice.

EXAMPLE: Teacher AB is an eligible teacher who timely provides a timely three (3) year notice of intent to retire at the end of the 2014-2015 school year. AB's scheduled salary from the 2011-2012 salary schedule was \$45,000 for full-time regular school year employment. AB also received certificated compensation during the 2011-2012 school year of \$1,500 for an extra duty.

For the 2012-2013 school year, AB continues to perform regular full-time school year duties and the same extra duty. For 2012-2013, AB's regular salary shall not be determined by the 2012-2013 salary schedule, but instead shall be 106% of the 2011-2012 regular salary. AB's total compensation for the 2012-2013 school year shall be ($$45,000 \times 1.06 = $47,700 + ($1,500 \times 1.06) = $1,590$ for a grand total of \$49,290.00.

For the 2013-2014 school year AB continues to perform regular full-time school year duties but no longer performs the extra duty. For the 2013-2014 school year, AB shall receive salary of \$47,700 X 1.06 = \$50,562.00.

For the 2014-2015 school year AB again perform regular full-time school year duties but takes on an extra duty with a regular stipend of \$1,000. For

the 2014-2015 school year AB shall receive regular salary of \$50,562 X 1.06 = \$53,596 + 1,000 = \$54,596.00.

"Total creditable earnings" means all compensation received by the teacher from the Board, which is recognized by TRS as "creditable earnings" such as salary, extracurricular payments, longevity pay, and board-paid TRS.

Should provisions of applicable law change whereby Board's or District's obligation to pay funds to the Teachers Retirement System changes after the effective date of this agreement, such that the District or Board is required to pay money to TRS or in respect to retirement of teachers not availing of the Modified Early Retirement Option, then this provision regarding retirement incentive shall, at the option of the Board, be deemed of no further force and effect, and the parties shall negotiate a successor provision. During any such negotiations, the *status quo* shall be that no payment described in this provision for retirement incentive shall apply or be due and payable to any teacher.

The text of this provision, (except where explicitly stated otherwise in the example) assumes that all teachers are employed full-time, and that their percentage of employment and work duties will remain the same during the periods following notice of intent to retire and irrevocable resignation. If a teacher's percentage of work decreases, salary will be decreased commensurate with the reduced work percentage.

EXAMPLE: Teacher HJ suffers a serious automobile accident, and as a result does not have stamina to work the entire day. She requests and is granted by the Board an accommodation to work two-thirds (2/3) time. She elects not to use any accrued sick leave in order to preserve it for TRS service credit. Her salaries, including any raise herein specified, is reduced proportionately to 66.66% of what it would have been if HJ had continued to work full time.

Nothing in this section "Notice of Intent to Retire and Additional Compensation" or any other provision in this Collective Bargaining Agreement requires the administration or Board to assign any teacher to duties such that his or her creditable earnings for any year will increase by more than six percent (6%) as compared to any prior year, if that teacher will be eligible to retire that year, or if that increased compensation in excess of six percent (6%) may be utilized by TRS in calculating that teacher's final compensation for TRS annuity purposes.

This provision is intended to create a benefit which does not cause the Board or District to pay penalties to the Teachers Retirement System for increases in total creditable earnings beyond six percent (6%). For this benefit to function as intended the work performed by the teacher and the compensation therefor shall not be altered except as agreed by the Board and Association. After a notice of intent to retire has been given, if a teacher fails or refuses to perform work upon which a prior year's creditable earnings total was based, then that teacher's

subsequent year's creditable earnings shall be calculated as if the teacher had not performed the same work in the prior year. Similarly, the Board shall not remove work from a teacher necessary to achieve the intended levels of compensation absent good cause.

If a teacher or teacher's spouse suffers a catastrophic injury or illness after giving notice of intent to retire the teacher may rescind the notice of intent to retire and the irrevocable letter of resignation. The additional sums received by the teacher as a result of this provision shall be repaid by the teacher. The teacher and Superintendent shall reach a schedule for repayment by payroll deduction as a condition of the teacher's right to rescind. The teacher may apply to the Board of Education to rescind a letter of resignation under this section for other reasons, which the Board may grant in its discretion.

This section "Notice of Intent to Retire and Additional Compensation" requires the teacher and Board to predict that the teacher will meet retirement eligibility at a future time. Should it become apparent that the teacher will not actually be eligible at the indicated time, the Board shall have the right to cease six percent (6%) increases. In such case, if the teacher's reason to fail to meet eligibility is beyond the control of the teacher, the teacher shall repay the incentives, but teacher's notice of intent to retire may be withdrawn at the teacher's request.

E. Once a teacher meets the threshold eligibility requirements as stated above, the employee must retire by the close of the school year that he/she first gains eligibility. The teacher must submit his/her irrevocable letter of resignation/retirement to the Board of Education by March 1 of the school year prior to his/her retirement under the one (1) year plan, by March 1 two (2) years prior to his/her retirement under the two (2) year plan, or by March 1 three (3) years prior to his/her retirement under the three (3) year plan. A TEACHER WHO BECOMES ELIGIBLE CANNOT DEFER ELIGIBILITY TO A FUTURE DATE. ELIGIBILITY OCCURS ONLY ONCE. Failure to retire at the close of the school year the teacher first gains eligibility will forever foreclose the teacher from the benefits of this Retirement Incentive provision for the remainder of the teacher's employment with the District.

ARTICLE 9B

RETIREMENT (This Article applies only to Educational Support Personnel)

Upon retirement with at least fifteen (15) years of service to this District, the Board will pay to the employee Thirty and 00/00 (\$30.00) for each earned and accumulated sick leave day which the employee could not apply for service credit upon retirement with the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund. No such payment will be made at a time that would cause the employee to receive in increase in creditable earnings more than six percent (6%) from one (1) year to the next. However, any monies beyond six percent (6%) would be provided post-retirement in a lump sum, thus resulting in no penalty.

ARTICLE 10

COMPENSATION (See APPENDICES A & B for Schedules)

10.1 Years of Experience in District (Vertical Movement on Schedule)

The years of experience in the District (vertical movement on the salary schedule) are based upon full years of full-time teaching. A full year of experience will be given any teacher who has worked full time for seventy percent (70%) of the school year. A half year of experience will be given any teacher who has worked full time at least forty percent (40%) of the school year. A half year of experience will be given any teacher who has worked one-half (1/2) time for at least seventy percent (70%) of the school year. Teachers shall not advance vertically on the salary schedule while on approved leave of absence unless they have worked full time for seventy percent (70%) of the school year.

10.2 Horizontal Movement on Salary Schedule

Horizontal movement on the salary schedule is accomplished by:

- A. Having an official grade report and transcript from the university demonstrating successful completion of the course on file in the District's administrative office by September 1 of the school year in which the credit is to be claimed.
- B. The course work must be approved in advance by the chief administrator or his/her designee if movement on the salary schedule is desired. Courses will be approved on the following basis:
 - 1. If the course is in a prescribed course of study leading to an advanced degree, or

- 2. If the course is pertinent to the teacher's area of education or if the course directly relates to the subject(s) taught by the teacher and is a graduate-level class, or
- 3. If the District requests that a course is taken by a teacher.
- C. No horizontal movement will be allowed on the salary schedule until the individual has received enough semester credits to advance to the next salary column.

10.3 Mileage

The Board will reimburse employees at the IRS current established rate per mile for mileage on personal automobiles wherein such mileage is necessary to meet responsibilities approved by an administrator. Mileage reimbursement at rates specified in this paragraph will become effective upon the date this agreement is signed and shall not be retroactive.

10.4 Insurance

A. Certified Staff

The Board agrees to pay twelve (12) monthly payments of up to \$705 per month for 2017-2018, up to \$720 per month for 2018-2019, and up to \$740 per month for 2019-2020, and up to \$760 per month for 2020-2021 but in no case more than the actual cost toward the District's Health Insurance Plans A, B, or C. Employees may not receive cash in lieu of Board-paid insurance contributions.

The Board agrees to pay twelve (12) monthly payments up to \$550.00 per month for 2017-2018, up to \$560 per month for 2018-2019, up to \$570 per month for 2019-2020, up to \$580 per month for 2020-2021 toward any employee who selects the HDCP Plan. The difference in the benefit amount and the actual cost of the HDC premium will be deposited into the employee's qualifying Health Savings Account.

The above increases shall take effect with the August premium each year. It is understood that coverage of employees is from September 1 through August 31 for each contract year.

Commencing with the first premium due during the term of this Agreement, for part-time employees, the Board contribution toward the cost of any insurance/HMO/PPO option shall be pro-rated to part-time employee status, subject to carrier restriction. For example, a sixty percent (60%) employee shall be entitled to a Board-paid contribution equal to sixty percent (60%) of that of a full-time employee. This provision shall not affect part-time employees in the employment of the Board of Education prior to July 10, 1991.

When an employee resigns or retires before completing the school year, the Board paid contribution toward the cost of any insurance/HMO/PPO option shall be prorated on the basis of days worked to one hundred eighty (180) days.

The Association may request that an insurance committee be formed including, but not limited to, members of the Association, administrators, other employee bargaining unit representatives and other employee group representatives when it is felt a need exists. Egyptian Trust shall not be dropped as a carrier except by mutual agreement of all parties. The final determination of carrier(s) shall be made by the Board of Education.

The Red Hill Education Association has the right to discuss policy changes and rates at least thirty (30) days before they go into effect.

B. Educational Support Personnel

For cooks and custodians first hired before July 1, 2015, the Board shall make a contribution toward the cost of health care coverage for employees who work four (4 or more hours per day at least 174 days per year equal to the contribution for full time teachers. For cooks and custodians hired on or after July 1, 2015, the Board contributions shall be prorated on the basis of the percentage of full time employment for that category of position. For purposes of this provision cooks are full time at six (6) or more hours per day, head cooks are full time at seven (7) or more hours per day and custodians are full time at eight (8) hours per day.

10.5 Retirement

The Board shall deduct whatever is designated by the legislature from the employee's pay as shown upon the salary schedule and extra-duty schedule. The aforementioned payments shall be forwarded to the Downstate Teacher Retirement System and shall be treated as a tax-sheltered contribution under 414(h) (2) of the Internal Revenue Code.

The Board will "Gross Up" whatever is designated by the legislature of the Health Insurance Contribution. "Grossing Up" is defined as adding or "Grossing Up" the salary schedule and extra-duty salary schedule an amount equal to the amount designated by the legislature, then deducting that same amount from the employee's after-tax salary to pay the T.H.I.S. to the Teacher Retirement System.

The Association agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Board from any liability for any damages or costs that may result as a direct consequence of the Board's compliance with this Article.

10.6 Payroll Deductions

Employees, upon request, will be provided payroll deduction for Association membership and to participate in a tax-sheltered annuity plan, credit union, and insurance program. In accordance with Illinois State Regulations, the Board of Education has adopted approved providers. Any teacher wishing to participate in a 403(B) plan must use one of the approved providers. A list of these approved providers will be available at the Unit Office.

10.7 Salary Requirements

The salary schedule and extra-duty schedule (Appendix A and B) include the contribution to the Downstate Teacher Retirement System and the contribution to the Health Insurance Contribution collected by the Teacher Retirement System. This salary schedule meets the requirements as set forth in Section 5/24-8 of the School Code.

10.8 Overload Compensation

If a junior/senior high teacher teaches seven (7) classes (or six (6) classes and supervises one (1) study hall) and that employee volunteers to regularly teach an additional academic class in the Junior/Senior High on a continuing basis, that teacher shall be paid for each additional class one-seventh (1/7) of the salary for an employee in the B.S. column of education with zero (0) years of experience.

10.9 Recognition of Outside Employment

Employment experience earned in other school settings shall be recognized for salary schedule purposes, commencing with the employees hired after the close of the 1993-94 school term as follows:

- A. Full-time public school service in Illinois.
- B. Full-time public school service in any State or United States Department of Defense school.
- C. Experience teaching at nursery schools or day care centers shall not be recognized.
- D. Experience teaching at levels beyond the twelfth grade shall not be recognized.
- E. Service less than full-time shall be recognized by the Board of Education as one-half year of service for each part-time year, except if the service was less than half-time, then no credit shall be recognized by the Board of Education.
- F. The District shall not be required to recognize more than ten (10) years of service in another school District or school system, but may do so at the discretion of the Board of Education. However, once service credit has been recognized and allowed, that service credit shall be recognized for all future years of placement on the District's salary schedule for that employee with the exception that any

employee may, after two (2) years of successful experience in the District, have the right to appeal to the Board of Education for recognition of any service credit not recognized upon employment. The employee is limited to one (1) appeal.

G. Nothing in this provision affects salary schedule placement of employees hired prior to the end of the 1993-1994 school term.

10.9.1 Employment of Retired Teachers

Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, when the District employs persons who have previously served the District or any other District and who have retired as an annuitant under the Teacher Retirement System, then such employees shall be paid at a rate not to exceed that of the M.S. plus zero (0) hours of education and ten (10) years of experience, irrespective of the number of years of experience of the employee or the number of educational hours recognized for that employee prior to retirement. Unless otherwise required by law in respect to such employees, the Board shall not deduct any teacher retirement contribution or T.H.I.S. contribution from such employee's pay unless subsequently required by law, since at the time of the making of this Agreement TRS contributions and T.H.I.S. contributions are not required in respect to persons who are annuitants. This provision shall not affect employees in the employment of the Board of Education prior to July 1, 1996.

10.9.2 Internal Substitutions

Teachers who are assigned to substitute for another teacher during their preparation period or in addition to their regular class will be paid at a rate of Fifteen and 00/100 Dollars (\$15.00) per class period. If the substitute works more than twenty-five (25) minutes, the substitute will receive Fifteen and 00/100 Dollars (\$15.00) per period. If the substitute works twenty-five (25) minutes or less they will be paid Seven and 50/100 Dollars (\$7.50). If a teacher volunteers to cover another teacher's class, they will not be paid.

ARTICLE 11

EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

11.1 Complete Understanding

The terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement constitute the full and complete understanding between the parties. This Agreement may not be modified except through the express written agreement of the parties.

11.2 No Strike

During the term of this Agreement, the Association agrees not to engage in a strike.

11.3 Duration

This Agreement shall be effective on the first day of school of the 2017-2018 school term, and shall remain in effect until June 30, 2020. The duration was extended one year, thus shall remain in effect until June 30, 2021.

11.4 Work Rules

The Board of Education shall have the right to adopt reasonable rules concerning employee conduct.

11.5 Reasonable Accommodations Required by Law

The Board shall have the right to make modifications to working conditions as are necessary to reasonably accommodate employees with disabilities. The Association understands and agrees that the Board is not permitted to disclose medical records of employees, and, therefore, the Board shall not be required to justify changes in work rules when the Board certifies that the same are necessary in order to make reasonable accommodations to an employee with a disability.

11.6 Savings Clause

Should any article, section, or clause of the Agreement be declared illegal by a court of competent jurisdiction, then that article, section, or clause shall be deleted from this Agreement at the extent that it violates the law. The remaining articles, sections, and clauses shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS THEREOF: RED HILL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION	RED HILL COMMUNITY UNIT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10
By: President	By: Bof-Chusty President
By: Moh Olabou Secretary	By: Secretary
Date: 06/09/2020	

APPENDIX A Year 1 - 2017-2018 SALARY SCHEDULE TEACHERS

New Base: \$36,484.58 Step: \$715 Lane: \$700 BS+8: \$350

Step	BS Salary	BS+8 Salary	BS+16 Salary	MS Salary	MS+16 Salary	MS+32 Salary
0	\$ 36,484.58	\$ 36,834.58	\$ 37,184.58	\$ 37,884.58	\$ 38,584.58	\$ 39,284.58
1	\$ 37,199.58	\$ 37,549.58	\$ 37,899.58	\$ 38,599.58	\$ 39,299.58	\$ 39,999.58
2	\$ 37,914.58	\$ 38,264.58	\$ 38,614.58	\$ 39,314.58	\$ 40,014.58	\$ 40,714.58
3	\$ 38,629.58	\$ 38,979.58	\$ 39,329.58	\$ 40,029.58	\$ 40,729.58	\$ 41,429.58
4	\$ 39,344.58	\$ 39,694.58	\$ 40,044.58	\$ 40,744.58	\$ 41,444.58	\$ 42,144.58
5	\$ 40,059.58	\$ 40,409.58	\$ 40,759.58	\$ 41,459.58	\$ 42,159.58	\$ 42,859.58
6	\$ 40,774.58	\$ 41,124.58	\$ 41,474.58	\$ 42,174.58	\$ 42,874.58	\$ 43,574.58
7	\$ 41,489.58	\$ 41,839.58	\$ 42,189.58	\$ 42,889.58	\$ 43,589.58	\$ 44,289.58
8	\$ 42,204.58	\$ 42,554.58	\$ 42,904.58	\$ 43,604.58	\$ 44,304.58	\$ 45,004.58
9	\$ 42,919.58	\$ 43,269.58	\$ 43,619.58	\$ 44,319.58	\$ 45,019.58	\$ 45,719.58
10	\$ 43,634.58	\$ 43,984.58	\$ 44,334.58	\$ 45,034.58	\$ 45,734.58	\$ 46,434.58
11	\$ 44,349.58	\$ 44,699.58	\$ 45,049.58	\$ 45,749.58	\$ 46,449.58	\$ 47,149.58
12	\$ 45,064.58	\$ 45,414.58	\$ 45,764.58	\$ 46,464.58	\$ 47,164.58	\$ 47,864.58
13	\$ 45,779.58	\$ 46,129.58	\$ 46,479.58	\$ 47,179.58	\$ 47,879.58	\$ 48,579.58
14	\$ 46,494.58	\$ 46,844.58	\$ 47,194.58	\$ 47,894.58	\$ 48,594.58	\$ 49,294.58
15	\$ 47,209.58	\$ 47,559.58	\$ 47,909.58	\$ 48,609.58	\$ 49,309.58	\$ 50,009.58
16	\$ 47,924.58	\$ 48,274.58	\$ 48,624.58	\$ 49,324.58	\$ 50,024.58	\$ 50,724.58
17	\$ 48,639.58	\$ 48,989.58	\$ 49,339.58	\$ 50,039.58	\$ 50,739.58	\$ 51,439.58
18	\$ 49,354.58	\$ 49,704.58	\$ 50,054.58	\$ 50,754.58	\$ 51,454.58	\$ 52,154.58
19	\$ 50,069.58	\$ 50,419.58	\$ 50,769.58	\$ 51,469.58	\$ 52,169.58	\$ 52,869.58
20	\$ 50,784.58	\$ 51,134.58	\$ 51,484.58	\$ 52,184.58	\$ 52,884.58	\$ 53,584.58
21	\$ 51,499.58	\$ 51,849.58	\$ 52,199.58	\$ 52,899.58	\$ 53,599.58	\$ 54,299.58
22	\$ 52,214.58	\$ 52,564.58	\$ 52,914.58	\$ 53,614.58	\$ 54,314.58	\$ 55,014.58
23	\$ 52,929.58	\$ 53,279.58	\$ 53,629.58	\$ 54,329.58	\$ 55,029.58	\$ 55,729.58
24	\$ 53,644.58	\$ 53,994.58	\$ 54,344.58	\$ 55,044.58	\$ 55,744.58	\$ 56,444.58
25	\$ 54,359.58	\$ 54,709.58	\$ 55,059.58	\$ 55,759.58	\$ 56,459.58	\$ 57,159.58
26	\$ 55,074.58	\$ 55,424.58	\$ 55,774.58	\$ 56,474.58	\$ 57,174.58	\$ 57,874.58
27	\$ 55,789.58	\$ 56,139.58	\$ 56,489.58	\$ 57,189.58	\$ 57,889.58	\$ 58,589.58
28	\$ 56,504.58	\$ 56,854.58	\$ 57,204.58	\$ 57,904.58	\$ 58,604.58	\$ 59,304.58
29	\$ 57,219.58	\$ 57,569.58	\$ 57,919.58	\$ 58,619.58	\$ 59,319.58	\$ 60,019.58
30	\$ 57,934.58	\$ 58,284.58	\$ 58,634.58	\$ 59,334.58	\$ 60,034.58	\$ 60,734.58
31	\$ 58,649.58	\$ 58,999.58	\$ 59,349.58	\$ 60,049.58	\$ 60,749.58	\$ 61,449.58
32	\$ 59,364.58	\$ 59,714.58	\$ 60,064.58	\$ 60,764.58	\$ 61,464.58	\$ 62,164.58
33	\$ 60,079.58	\$ 60,429.58	\$ 60,779.58	\$ 61,479.58	\$ 62,179.58	\$ 62,879.58
34	\$ 60,794.58	\$ 61,144.58	\$ 61,494.58	\$ 62,194.58	\$ 62,894.58	\$ 63,594.58
35	\$ 61,509.58	\$ 61,859.58	\$ 62,209.58	\$ 62,909.58	\$ 63,609.58	\$ 64,309.58

APPENDIX A Year 2 - 2018-2019 SALARY SCHEDULE TEACHERS

New Base: \$37,214.27 Step: \$715 Lane: \$700 BS+8: \$350

Step	BS Salary	BS+8 Salary	BS+16 Salary	MS Salary	MS+16 Salary	MS+32 Salary
0	\$ 37,214.27	\$ 37,564.27	\$ 37,914.27	\$ 38,614.27	\$ 39,314.27	\$ 40,014.27
1	\$ 37,929.27	\$ 38,279.27	\$ 38,629.27	\$ 39,329.27	\$ 40,029.27	\$ 40,729.27
2	\$ 38,644.27	\$ 38,994.27	\$ 39,344.27	\$ 40,044.27	\$ 40,744.27	\$ 41,444.27
3	\$ 39,359.27	\$ 39,709.27	\$ 40,059.27	\$ 40,759.27	\$ 41,459.27	\$ 42,159.27
4	\$ 40,074.27	\$ 40,424.27	\$ 40,774.27	\$ 41,474.27	\$ 42,174.27	\$ 42,874.27
5	\$ 40,789.27	\$ 41,139.27	\$ 41,489.27	\$ 42,189.27	\$ 42,889.27	\$ 43,589.27
6	\$ 41,504.27	\$ 41,854.27	\$ 42,204.27	\$ 42,904.27	\$ 43,604.27	\$ 44,304.27
7	\$ 42,219.27	\$ 42,569.27	\$ 42,919.27	\$ 43,619.27	\$ 44,319.27	\$ 45,019.27
8	\$ 42,934.27	\$ 43,284.27	\$ 43,634.27	\$ 44,334.27	\$ 45,034.27	\$ 45,734.27
9	\$ 43,649.27	\$ 43,999.27	\$ 44,349.27	\$ 45,049.27	\$ 45,749.27	\$ 46,449.27
10	\$ 44,364.27	\$ 44,714.27	\$ 45,064.27	\$ 45,764.27	\$ 46,464.27	\$ 47,164.27
11	\$ 45,079.27	\$ 45,429.27	\$ 45,779.27	\$ 46,479.27	\$ 47,179.27	\$ 47,879.27
12	\$ 45,794.27	\$ 46,144.27	\$ 46,494.27	\$ 47,194.27	\$ 47,894.27	\$ 48,594.27
13	\$ 46,509.27	\$ 46,859.27	\$ 47,209.27	\$ 47,909.27	\$ 48,609.27	\$ 49,309.27
14	\$ 47,224.27	\$ 47,574.27	\$ 47,924.27	\$ 48,624.27	\$ 49,324.27	\$ 50,024.27
15	\$ 47,939.27	\$ 48,289.27	\$ 48,639.27	\$ 49,339.27	\$ 50,039.27	\$ 50,739.27
16	\$ 48,654.27	\$ 49,004.27	\$ 49,354.27	\$ 50,054.27	\$ 50,754.27	\$ 51,454.27
17	\$ 49,369.27	\$ 49,719.27	\$ 50,069.27	\$ 50,769.27	\$ 51,469.27	\$ 52,169.27
18	\$ 50,084.27	\$ 50,434.27	\$ 50,784.27	\$ 51,484.27	\$ 52,184.27	\$ 52,884.27
19	\$ 50,799.27	\$ 51,149.27	\$ 51,499.27	\$ 52,199.27	\$ 52,899.27	\$ 53,599.27
20	\$ 51,514.27	\$ 51,864.27	\$ 52,214.27	\$ 52,914.27	\$ 53,614.27	\$ 54,314.27
21	\$ 52,229.27	\$ 52,579.27	\$ 52,929.27	\$ 53,629.27	\$ 54,329.27	\$ 55,029.27
22	\$ 52,944.27	\$ 53,294.27	\$ 53,644.27	\$ 54,344.27	\$ 55,044.27	\$ 55,744.27
23	\$ 53,659.27	\$ 54,009.27	\$ 54,359.27	\$ 55,059.27	\$ 55,759.27	\$ 56,459.27
24	\$ 54,374.27	\$ 54,724.27	\$ 55,074.27	\$ 55,774.27	\$ 56,474.27	\$ 57,174.27
25	\$ 55,089.27	\$ 55,439.27	\$ 55,789.27	\$ 56,489.27	\$ 57,189.27	\$ 57,889.27
26	\$ 55,804.27	\$ 56,154.27	\$ 56,504.27	\$ 57,204.27	\$ 57,904.27	\$ 58,604.27
27	\$ 56,519.27	\$ 56,869.27	\$ 57,219.27	\$ 57,919.27	\$ 58,619.27	\$ 59,319.27
28	\$ 57,234.27	\$ 57,584.27	\$ 57,934.27	\$ 58,634.27	\$ 59,334.27	\$ 60,034.27
29	\$ 57,949.27	\$ 58,299.27	\$ 58,649.27	\$ 59,349.27	\$ 60,049.27	\$ 60,749.27
30	\$ 58,664.27	\$ 59,014.27	\$ 59,364.27	\$ 60,064.27	\$ 60,764.27	\$ 61,464.27
31	\$ 59,379.27	\$ 59,729.27	\$ 60,079.27	\$ 60,779.27	\$ 61,479.27	\$ 62,179.27
32	\$ 60,094.27	\$ 60,444.27	\$ 60,794.27	\$ 61,494.27	\$ 62,194.27	\$ 62,894.27
33	\$ 60,809.27	\$ 61,159.27	\$ 61,509.27	\$ 62,209.27	\$ 62,909.27	\$ 63,609.27
34	\$ 61,524.27	\$ 61,874.27	\$ 62,224.27	\$ 62,924.27	\$ 63,624.27	\$ 64,324.27
35	\$ 62,239.27	\$ 62,589.27	\$ 62,939.27	\$ 63,639.27	\$ 64,339.27	\$ 65,039.27

APPENDIX A Year 3 - 2019-2020 SALARY SCHEDULE TEACHERS

Step	BS Salary	BS+8 Salary	BS+16 Salary	MS Salary	MS+16 Salary	MS+32 Salary
0	\$ 37,958.56	\$ 38,308.56	\$ 38,658.56	\$ 39,358.56	\$ 40,058.56	\$ 40,758.56
1	\$ 38,673.56	\$ 39,023.56	\$ 39,373.56	\$ 40,073.56	\$ 40,773.56	\$ 41,473.56
2	\$ 39,388.56	\$ 39,738.56	\$ 40,088.56	\$ 40,788.56	\$ 41,488.56	\$ 42,188.56
3	\$ 40,103.56	\$ 40,453.56	\$ 40,803.56	\$ 41,503.56	\$ 42,203.56	\$ 42,903.56
4	\$ 40,818.56	\$ 41,168.56	\$ 41,518.56	\$ 42,218.56	\$ 42,918.56	\$ 43,618.56
5	\$ 41,533.56	\$ 41,883.56	\$ 42,233.56	\$ 42,933.56	\$ 43,633.56	\$ 44,333.56
6	\$ 42,248.56	\$ 42,598.56	\$ 42,948.56	\$ 43,648.56	\$ 44,348.56	\$ 45,048.56
7	\$ 42,963.56	\$ 43,313.56	\$ 43,663.56	\$ 44,363.56	\$ 45,063.56	\$ 45,763.56
8	\$ 43,678.56	\$ 44,028.56	\$ 44,378.56	\$ 45,078.56	\$ 45,778.56	\$ 46,478.56
9	\$ 44,393.56	\$ 44,743.56	\$ 45,093.56	\$ 45,793.56	\$ 46,493.56	\$ 47,193.56
10	\$ 45,108.56	\$ 45,458.56	\$ 45,808.56	\$ 46,508.56	\$ 47,208.56	\$ 47,908.56
11	\$ 45,823.56	\$ 46,173.56	\$ 46,523.56	\$ 47,223.56	\$ 47,923.56	\$ 48,623.56
12	\$ 46,538.56	\$ 46,888.56	\$ 47,238.56	\$ 47,938.56	\$ 48,638.56	\$ 49,338.56
13	\$ 47,253.56	\$ 47,603.56	\$ 47,953.56	\$ 48,653.56	\$ 49,353.56	\$ 50,053.56
14	\$ 47,968.56	\$ 48,318.56	\$ 48,668.56	\$ 49,368.56	\$ 50,068.56	\$ 50,768.56
15	\$ 48,683.56	\$ 49,033.56	\$ 49,383.56	\$ 50,083.56	\$ 50,783.56	\$ 51,483.56
16	\$ 49,398.56	\$ 49,748.56	\$ 50,098.56	\$ 50,798.56	\$ 51,498.56	\$ 52,198.56
17	\$ 50,113.56	\$ 50,463.56	\$ 50,813.56	\$ 51,513.56	\$ 52,213.56	\$ 52,913.56
18	\$ 50,828.56	\$ 51,178.56	\$ 51,528.56	\$ 52,228.56	\$ 52,928.56	\$ 53,628.56
19	\$ 51,543.56	\$ 51,893.56	\$ 52,243.56	\$ 52,943.56	\$ 53,643.56	\$ 54,343.56
20	\$ 52,258.56	\$ 52,608.56	\$ 52,958.56	\$ 53,658.56	\$ 54,358.56	\$ 55,058.56
21	\$ 52,973.56	\$ 53,323.56	\$ 53,673.56	\$ 54,373.56	\$ 55,073.56	\$ 55,773.56
22	\$ 53,688.56	\$ 54,038.56	\$ 54,388.56	\$ 55,088.56	\$ 55,788.56	\$ 56,488.56
23	\$ 54,403.56	\$ 54,753.56	\$ 55,103.56	\$ 55,803.56	\$ 56,503.56	\$ 57,203.56
24	\$ 55,118.56	\$ 55,468.56	\$ 55,818.56	\$ 56,518.56	\$ 57,218.56	\$ 57,918.56
25	\$ 55,833.56	\$ 56,183.56	\$ 56,533.56	\$ 57,233.56	\$ 57,933.56	\$ 58,633.56
26	\$ 56,548.56	\$ 56,898.56	\$ 57,248.56	\$ 57,948.56	\$ 58,648.56	\$ 59,348.56
27	\$ 57,263.56	\$ 57,613.56	\$ 57,963.56	\$ 58,663.56	\$ 59,363.56	\$ 60,063.56
28	\$ 57,978.56	\$ 58,328.56	\$ 58,678.56	\$ 59,378.56	\$ 60,078.56	\$ 60,778.56
29	\$ 58,693.56	\$ 59,043.56	\$ 59,393.56	\$ 60,093.56	\$ 60,793.56	\$ 61,493.56
30	\$ 59,408.56	\$ 59,758.56	\$ 60,108.56	\$ 60,808.56	\$ 61,508.56	\$ 62,208.56
31	\$ 60,123.56	\$ 60,473.56	\$ 60,823.56	\$ 61,523.56	\$ 62,223.56	\$ 62,923.56
32	\$ 60,838.56	\$ 61,188.56	\$ 61,538.56	\$ 62,238.56	\$ 62,938.56	\$ 63,638.56
33	\$ 61,553.56	\$ 61,903.56	\$ 62,253.56	\$ 62,953.56	\$ 63,653.56	\$ 64,353.56
34	\$ 62,268.56	\$ 62,618.56	\$ 62,968.56	\$ 63,668.56	\$ 64,368.56	\$ 65,068.56
35	\$ 62,983.56	\$ 63,333.56	\$ 63,683.56	\$ 64,383.56	\$ 65,083.56	\$ 65,783.56

APPENDIX A Year 4 - 2020-2021 SALARY SCHEDULE TEACHERS

New Base: \$38,717.73 Step: \$715 Lane: \$700 BS+8: \$350

New Base: \$38	0,717.73	Step: \$71	5 Lane: S	700 BS+8: \$	330	
Step	BS Salary	BS+8 Salary	BS+16 Salary	MS Salary	MS+16 Salary	MS+32 Salary
0	\$38,717.73	\$39,067.73	\$39,417.73	\$40,117.73	\$40,817.73	\$41,517.73
1	\$39,432.73	\$39,782.73	\$40,132.73	\$40,832.73	\$41,532.73	\$42,232.73
2	\$40,147.73	\$40,497.73	\$40,847.73	\$41,547.73	\$42,247.73	\$42,947.73
3	\$40,862.73	\$41,212.73	\$41,562.73	\$42,262.73	\$42,962.73	\$43,662.73
4	\$41,577.73	\$41,927.73	\$42,277.73	\$42,977.73	\$43,677.73	\$44,377.73
5	\$42,292.73	\$42,642.73	\$42,992.73	\$43,692.73	\$44,392.73	\$45,092.73
6	\$43,007.73	\$43,357.73	\$43,707.73	\$44,407.73	\$45,107.73	\$45,807.73
7	\$43,722.73	\$44,072.73	\$44,422.73	\$45,122.73	\$45,822.73	\$46,522.73
8	\$44,437.73	\$44,787.73	\$45,137.73	\$45,837.73	\$46,537.73	\$47,237.73
9	\$45,152.73	\$45,502.73	\$45,852.73	\$46,552.73	\$47,252.73	\$47,952.73
10	\$45,867.73	\$46,217.73	\$46,567.73	\$47,267.73	\$47,967.73	\$48,667.73
11	\$46,582.73	\$46,932.73	\$47,282.73	\$47,982.73	\$48,682.73	\$49,382.73
12	\$47,297.73	\$47,647.73	\$47,997.73	\$48,697.73	\$49,397.73	\$50,097.73
13	\$48,012.73	\$48,362.73	\$48,712.73	\$49,412.73	\$50,112.73	\$50,812.73
14	\$48,727.73	\$49,077.73	\$49,427.73	\$50,127.73	\$50,827.73	\$51,527.73
15	\$49,442.73	\$49,792.73	\$50,142.73	\$50,842.73	\$51,542.73	\$52,242.73
16	\$50,157.73	\$50,507.73	\$50,857.73	\$51,557.73	\$52,257.73	\$52,957.73
17	\$50,872.73	\$51,222.73	\$51,572.73	\$52,272.73	\$52,972.73	\$53,672.73
18	\$51,587.73	\$51,937.73	\$52,287.73	\$52,987.73	\$53,687.73	\$54,387.73
19	\$52,302.73	\$52,652.73	\$53,002.73	\$53,702.73	\$54,402.73	\$55,102.73
20	\$53,017.73	\$53,367.73	\$53,717.73	\$54,417.73	\$55,117.73	\$55,817.73
21	\$53,732.73	\$54,082.73	\$54,432.73	\$55,132.73	\$55,832.73	\$56,532.73
22	\$54,447.73	\$54,797.73	\$55,147.73	\$55,847.73	\$56,547.73	\$57,247.73
23	\$55,162.73	\$55,512.73	\$55,862.73	\$56,562.73	\$57,262.73	\$57,962.73
24	\$55,877.73	\$56,227.73	\$56,577.73	\$57,277.73	\$57,977.73	\$58,677.73
25	\$56,592.73	\$56,942.73	\$57,292.73	\$57,992.73	\$58,692.73	\$59,392.73
26	\$57,307.73	\$57,657.73	\$58,007.73	\$58,707.73	\$59,407.73	\$60,107.73
27	\$58,022.73	\$58,372.73	\$58,722.73	\$59,422.73	\$60,122.73	\$60,822.73
28	\$58,737.73	\$59,087.73	\$59,437.73	\$60,137.73	\$60,837.73	\$61,537.73
29	\$59,452.73	\$59,802.73	\$60,152.73	\$60,852.73	\$61,552.73	\$62,252.73
30	\$60,167.73	\$60,517.73	\$60,867.73	\$61,567.73	\$62,267.73	\$62,967.73
31	\$60,882.73	\$61,232.73	\$61,582.73	\$62,282.73	\$62,982.73	\$63,682.73
32	\$61,597.73	\$61,947.73	\$62,297.73	\$62,997.73	\$63,697.73	\$64,397.73
33	\$62,312.73	\$62,662.73	\$63,012.73	\$63,712.73	\$64,412.73	\$65,112.73
34	\$63,027.73	\$63,377.73	\$63,727.73	\$64,427.73	\$65,127.73	\$65,827.73
35	\$63,742.73	\$64,092.73	\$64,442.73	\$65,142.73	\$65,842.73	\$66,542.73

APPENDIX A Year 1 - 2017-2018 SALARY SCHEDULE COOKS & CUSTODIANS

CUSTODIANS

	1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year
	80%	85%	90%	95%	100%
Ī	\$15.20	\$16.15	\$17.10	\$18.05	\$19.00

COOKS

1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year
80%	85%	90%	95%	100%
\$14.25	\$15.14	\$16.03	\$16.92	\$17.81

Note: Head Cooks add \$1.00/hr

Year 2 - 2018-2019 SALARY SCHEDULE COOKS & CUSTODIANS

CUSTODIANS

1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year
80%	85%	90%	95%	100%
\$15.50	\$16.47	\$17.44	\$18.41	\$19.38

COOKS

1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year
80%	85%	90%	95%	100%
\$14.54	\$15.44	\$16.35	\$17.26	\$18.17

Note: Head Cooks add \$1.00/hr

Year 3 - 2019-2020 SALARY SCHEDULE COOKS & CUSTODIANS

CUSTODIANS

1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year
80%	85%	90%	95%	100%
\$15.82	\$16.80	\$17.79	\$18.78	\$19.77

COOKS

1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year
80%	85%	90%	95%	100%
\$14.82	\$15.75	\$16.68	\$17.60	\$18.53

Note: Head Cooks add \$1.00/hr

Year 4 - 2020-2021 SALARY SCHEDULE COOKS & CUSTODIANS

CUSTODIANS

	1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year
	80%	85%	90%	95%	100%
Ī	\$16.14	\$17.14	\$18.15	\$19.16	\$20.17

COOKS

	1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year
	80%	85%	90%	95%	100%
Ī	\$15.12	\$16.07	\$17.01	\$17.96	\$18.90

Note: Head Cooks add \$1.00/hr

APPENDIX B EXTRA-DUTY SCHEDULE

Extra-Duties

Qualifications for extra-duty positions shall be determined by the Board and Administration. The Board may appoint non-bargaining unit members as coaches, sponsors or other supervisors of extra-curricular positions. However, prior to the time any such position is filled (other than on a temporary or emergency basis), openings for such positions shall be posted in accordance with the normal District procedure, and interested members of the bargaining unit may apply. The Board will post positions only in the event of an employee's retirement, resignation, or termination from an extra-duty position. Selection of the individual to fill such openings, or whether openings shall be filled at all, shall continue to be a matter of discretion of the Board.

Employee Protections

- 1. No employee shall be assigned a coaching position involuntarily. This does not include academic club sponsorship, music positions, prom sponsor, magazine sales sponsor, yearbook sponsor, or student council sponsor.
- 2. An employee may resign an extra-duty by giving notice at least sixty (60) calendar days before the end of the school term to resign effective the next school year.
- 3. The Board may not negotiate extra-duty stipends with individual employees above those minimum stipends specified in Appendix B.
- 4. The Board shall give notice to an employee at the time of hiring that there shall be no right to resign extra-duties that are expressly part of the terms for first employment for that employee. It will be at the discretion of the Board of Education to let employees performing an extra-duty under these circumstances to resign their positions.
- 5. Additional assistant coaches acceptable to the District will be employed if they are fully funded by voluntary contributions to the District.
- 6. No administrator shall hold a slot on the extra duty schedule unless so appointed by the Board of Education in an emergency or if there are no other candidates for the position. Such appointment shall be for one (1) athletic season. Reappointment of an administrator to an extra duty position shall require written agreement by the Association for each subsequent season.
- 7. Volleyball and Basketball Bookkeeper and Timer will be paid Thirty and 00/100 Dollars (\$30.00) per night for grades 7-12 home sporting events.

- 8. Float building chaperones. The administration agrees to assign and enforce all chaperone assignments during float building week.
- 9. Extra duty pay will be paid equally through regular yearly pay periods (10 or 12 month) or may be paid in one sum in the pay period of the month following the termination of the extra duty.
- 10. The Association will be given a list of extra duty sponsors as soon as possible at the beginning of each school year.
- 11. FFA Sponsors (2) will be allotted a nine and one-half (9.5) month contract.
- 12. The total number of participants used to determine whether or not an assistant coach will be paid will be determined on the first official contest for each sport as set by the IHSA, IESA, or SIJHSAA, whichever applies.
- 13. Noon Duty pay will be Fifteen and 00/100 Dollars (\$15.00) per hour for the length of the contract.

No extra-duty assignment shall be deemed unreasonable if the foregoing has been complied with.

All coaches employed in an Extra-Curricular Stipend in the 2014-2015 school year that exceeds the flat rate salary will remain at the 2014-2015 rate in subsequent years so long as they remain employed in the same position(s). Any coach or club sponsor reinstated or employed in a different position will be compensated at the new flat rate stipend.

APPENDIX B EXTRA-DUTY SCHEDULE

* Means that the stipend position was a paid position in the 2017-2018 school year.

2017-2020 EXTRA-CURRICULAR STIPENDS

Duty	Rate		
		Duty	Rate
Group 1	\$4,400		
HS Head Football*		Group 5	\$2,100
HS Head B Basketball*		HS Yearbook*	
HS Head G Basketball*		HS Dance*	
G	04050	JH Cheer*	
Group 2	\$4,250		-
HS Athletic Director*		Group 6	\$1,700
HS Band Director*		HS Scholastic Bowl*	
C 2	#2 = 00	5/6 Head B Basketball	
Group 3	\$3,500	5/6 Head G Basketball	
HS Head B Track*		JH Asst. Track (20+)	
HS Head G Track*		JH Asst. Baseball (20+)	
HS Head B Baseball*		JH Asst. Softball (20+)	
HS Head G Softball*		_	
HS Head Golf		Group 7	\$1,400
HS Head Volleyball*		JH Scholastic Bowl	
JH Head B Basketball*			
JH Head G Basketball*		Group 8	\$1,000
JH/5-6 Music		HS Student Council*	
HS Asst. Football		5/6 Cheer	
HS Asst. Football		C o	CE 0.0
HS Asst. B Basketball		Group 9	<u>\$700</u>
HS Asst. B Basketball		Science Club	
HS Asst. G Basketball		FBLA	
C 4	62 (00	FCCLA	
Group 4	\$2,600	Spanish Club	
JR/SR HS Asst. Athletic Dir.		Jr. Prom Sponsor	
HS Asst. Baseball (20+)		Jr. Magazine Sales	
HS Asst. B Track (20+)		HS Math Team*	
HS Asst. G Track (20+)		HS Latin Club	
HS Asst. Softball (20+)		HS Art Club	
HS Asst. Volleyball			
JH Asst. B Basketball			
JH Asst. G Basketball			
JH B Track*			
JH G Track*			
JH Head Baseball*			
JH Head Softball*			
HS Cheer*			

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

This letter of understanding is not part of the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Red Hill Education Association-IEA/NEA and the Board of Education, is not part of the collective bargaining process, and is not grievable.

The Board understands that teachers should have adequate planning time. The Board will endeavor to maintain planning time for teachers at the current levels. The Board also recognizes that class size is important to teachers, and the equality of education. All other factors being equal, class sizes which are too large negatively impact instruction and education. The Board will endeavor to keep class sizes at or below current levels.

However, due to changes in enrollment, funding and grants, and other contingencies beyond the control of the Board of Education, the Board retains the final decision as to staffing patterns, which may affect class size, as well as planning time for teachers.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

This Agreement is made by and between the Red Hill Education Association and the Board of Education of Red Hill Community Unit School District No. 10. This Agreement is not part of the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the parties, but is instead sets out the parties' intentions to prepare for the Performance Evaluation Review Act (PERA) implementation date applicable to Red Hill Community Unit School District, currently anticipated by the parties to be September 1, 2016.

A. BACKGROUND

PERA effectuates changes in the nature of evaluation of certified employees. No later than the PERA implementation date, the District's evaluation plan must include student performance as a significant element of teacher evaluation. At present, the District's evaluation plan does not include student performance as an element of evaluation.

PERA mandates that the District, like all other Illinois school districts, form a PERA joint committee consisting of equal numbers of members appointed by the Board and local sole and exclusive bargaining representative. If the PERA joint committee does not reach agreement as to student performance element of teacher evaluation in the district, within 180 calendar days of first meeting, then the District must default to the state plan regarding the student evaluation component.

The parties wish to form a PERA Exploratory Committee for the purposes of exploring the student component of evaluation, and other elements of certified employee evaluation as well, and to clothe that committee with authority to recommend, to the Board, on behalf of both the Administration and Association such things as evaluation education and training, pilot or other projects regarding evaluation, and changes to the District's evaluation plan instruments and tools. The goals of the PERA Exploratory Committee will be to (1) Anticipate the work of the PERA Committee, (2) Evaluate, explore and research evaluation plans and models, (3) Prepare recommendations for the PERA Committee and (4) Endeavor to make it such that the PERA joint committee can complete its work well before the PERA implementation date, so as to avoid, if possible, the imposition of any component of the evaluation plan by operation of law. The parties anticipate that there will be substantial continuity of membership between the PERA Exploratory Committee and the PERA joint committee.

The PERA Exploratory Committee shall be established with 4 members appointed by the Association and 4 members selected by the Board. This committee shall meet no later than January 1, 2013 and shall complete its work no later than January 1, 2015. The Board and Association shall each appoint a co-chair from their respective members. Otherwise, the committee shall establish its own procedures and methods, and reach agreement on the basis of consensus, which shall be agreement of at least three-fourths of the membership in respect to any given proposal.

B. PERA Joint Committee

A PERA Joint Committee shall be established with four (4) members appointed by the Association and four (4) members selected by the District. The charge of this committee shall be to consider the work of the PERA Exploratory Committee, and develop such changes to the District evaluation plan as are necessary or prudent to bring the District's evaluation plan into accordance with the Performance Evaluation Reform Act requirements. The Board and Association shall each appoint a co-chair from their respective members. Otherwise, the committee shall establish its own procedures and methods, and reach agreement on the basis of consensus, which shall be agreement of at least three-fourths of the membership in respect to any given proposal.

The PERA Joint Committee shall meet no sooner than the completion of work by the PERA Exploratory Committee and no later than January 15, 2015. This PERA Joint Committee must complete its work within one hundred eighty (180) days of its first meeting, in order to provide adequate time for adequate familiarization by certified employees of changes to the evaluation plan, instruments and tools. If the Board and Association agree, the PERA Joint Committee shall meet annually thereafter. Changes to the evaluation plan, tools and instruments approved by the PERA Joint Committee by consensus shall be implemented.

C. Release Time

Upon recommendation of the PERA Exploratory Committee and approval of the Board, Association members of the PERA Exploratory Committee and/or PERA Joint Committee may be given released time (such as through the hiring of substitutes) for the Committee work.